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I8 BEPARTHENT __ﬁi‘-

December 12, 2003

The Honorable Jim Doyle
The Honorable Members of the Legislature
Citizens of the State of Wisconsin

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of Wisconsin
for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2003. This report is prepared by the Department of Administration,
Division of Executive Budget and Finance, State Controller's Office, which is responsible for both the
accuracy of the data and the completeness and faimess of its presentation, including disclosures. We
believe that the information presented is accurate in all material respects and reported in a manner designed
to show the financial position and operating results of the State.

This report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for
governments as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). To report the
State's financial activity, the State's budgetary funds are grouped into the fund types required by GAAP.
The State's 59 budgetary funds are expanded and. have been displayed into the 90 individual GAAP funds, -

- and four dmcrete component -units.. - The:major change has been to reclassify certam activities from the -

budgetary General Fund and present them in proprietary and fiduciary fund types more appropriate for the
financial reporting of transactions related to commercial and trust activities. Note 1-C to the financial
statements includes a more detailed discussion of the generic GAAP fund types.

Wisconsin's 2003 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: Introductory,
Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section, which provides information on the general contents of
the report, contains this letter of transmittal, a list of ‘State officials and an-organizational chart of* State
government. The Financial Section is composed of the auditor's report, Management Discussion and
Analysis, the basic financial statements, required supplementary information and the combining financial
statements. The Statistical Section provides various financial, economic and demographic data about the
State, generally on a multi-year basis.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The State’s
MD&A can be found immediately following the auditor’s report.

PROFILE OF GOVERNMENT

The financial statements present information on the financial position and operations of State government
as a single comprehensive reporting entity. The various agencies, departments, boards, commissions and
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- agepunts of the ‘State that constitite the State reporting entity are included in this report in accordance with
criteria established by the GASB. The reporting entity consists of all the funds of the primary government
(the State of Wisconsin), as well as its component units which are legally separate organizations for
- which+~the - State: is ‘financially - accountable: Discretely presented component units include the Wisconsin
+.- Housing and Economic Development: Authority, the Wisconsin Health Care Liability Insurance Plan,. the
- University -of Wisconsin: Hospitals and Clinics: Authority, and the Badger Tobacco Asset Securitization
Corporation. Blended component units, which are legally separate from the State, but are so intertwined
with the State that they are, in substance, the same as the State, include the Wisconsin Public Broadcasimg
Foundation, Inc. R ;

The State provides a full range of services that include education, health and social services, transportation,

tawy justice, 'public safety, recreation and -resources development public improvements - and general

. administrative “services.. -The costs. assoczated wzth these services are presentfzd within the: financial
statemenis in detaﬂ and summary form. . : :

'Internai C'ontr-{)ls

The State's internal accounting controls provide reasonable assurance regarding the safeguardmg of assets
.- against loss from unauthorized use or: disposal -and. the reliability of financial records -for preparing
financial statements. - The concept of reasonable assurance. recognizes that the cost of a control should:not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and that evaluation of costs and benefits reqmres estimates and
judgments by management. S e : -

Budgetary Controls

The State s bwnmai budget is prepaxed ona mixmre of cash aa’aci modlﬁed accruai bases of accountmg and
represents departmental appropriations based on agency requests. reviewed by - the Department of

L ._'Ad;:mmstranan and recommended by the Govemor The Govemors budget 18, submatted to the Statej -

budget bill is returned m the (}ovemer far h;s szgnamre or veto in ennrety orin part

- The State Constamnon pmwdes that N0 Money. shali be pazd ozzt of the Treasury except as appropriated by
law. The Statutes require that the Secretary of Administration must approve all payments, and-then
forward such requests to the State Treasurer for signature. The Department of Administration exercises
detail allotment control over all agency appropriations and approval authority over all encumbrances... = -

The budgetary: basis of accounting required by State law differs materially from the basis used to report
revenues and expenditures in accordance with GAAP. In addition, the State's biennial budget is developed
.according to the statutorily required fund structure: that differs extenszveiy from the fund structure used in
the financial statements. ; : -

Debt Admimstraimn

The State of Wisconsm Buﬂdmg Camm;ssmﬁ an agency of the State is empowereé by iaw to conmsder
act upon, authorize, issue and sell all debt obligations of the State. Article VIII of the Wisconsin
Constitution and Wis. Stat. Sec. 18.05 limits the amount of debt the State can contract in tofal and in any
calendar vear. In total, debt cannot exceed five percent of the value of all taxable property in the State.
The amount of debt contracted in any calendar year is limited to the lesser of three-quarters of one percent
of aggregate value of taxable property or five percent of aggregate value of taxable property less net



- indebtedness at Eanuary 1. The total generai obhgatmn debt outstandmg for the State as of June 30, 2003
was: $4 0 ’mihon e _ .

- -In adfhticm, Chapter i8 of the Wisconsm Statutas autherzzes the State to issue revenue obhgatmns _These

- obligations, which are not debt of the State; are:secured by a pledge of revenues or property derived from

- -the operations-of a-program funded by thed zssuance of the obligations. - Revenue bonds totaled 819 bilh(}n
c)utstandmg at ﬁscai year—end : .

C ash Managafment

- The State of Wisconsin Investment Board is: responsible for investing in cash resources of the State. .1On a

- daily ‘basis, excess cash from-all funds is pooled and invested through a variety of investment vehicles.

- Interest incotne eamed on these investments is: allocated to the various funds based on their average daily
cash balances. The total amount of investments in the State Investinent Fund at June 30, 2003 was 835.5
bilii{m. '

R;sk Management

: The State’s rxsk management program, encompassmg 311 State -agencies, began i 1974 thhm the
' Department ef Adm;xmstmtmn Statuiory respons:bzhnes and authamy mcludc but are not hmnedtﬁ

Protectmg thc State's assets from catastrophm loss

Emphasizing loss reduction;

1dentifying and evaluating exposures to loss;

Recommendmg changes in procedures and programs to eliminate or reduce exxstmg expcsures

‘Arrangitig appropriate insurance for the transfer of risk of loss; and -
& Approvmg aii insurance puxchases = -

e ® e 8 e ®

g 3.'Current1y, the State is essentaaﬁy seif»msured through its r;sk management pmgram agamst major iosses '
to which it is exposed. The Risk Management Fund, an internal service fund, services most claims forrisk
of loss, including damage to State owned property, liability for property damages and injuries to third
" parties, and worker's compensatlon Additional disciosures on the State s risk managemsm actwmes are
provzcied in Note 17. : =

Pensmn Trust Funds

* The Wisconsin Retitement System (WRS), consisting of the fixed retirement investment trust, the variable
retirement investment trust; and the police and firefighters trust is administered by the Department of
‘Employee Trust'Funds. The WRS provides coverage to all eligible employees of the State Of Wisconsin
and other participating local units of government. :

The most current actuarial valuations of the pension plan indicated that the WRS was funded at 97.1
percent of liabilities for the 525,298 participants of the WRS. The State's contribution represents 30.0
percent of total conmhutwns reqmred of all parﬂc;patmg entities. .



ECONOMXC C()NBITI.N AND OI}TLOOK

: In caienda:r year 20{}2 the Wisconsm economy mm’ered the slow national recosfery

: Aﬁer averaging 2- percent grewth annualiy frem 1991 o 2(}{}{) W;sconsm s empkoymem declined in 2{}{}1
and 2002, Non-farm employment -declined :-0.7 percent in 2001 and —1.2 percent in 2002. Natmnal!y,
empiﬁymem was: ﬂat in 2001 and declined —1. 3 percem m 2002

Personai income growth weakened wrth the employment losses The year's income growth averaged 3.4

percent in both 2001 and 2002 compared to 6.3 percent in 2000. Wisconsin’s income growth fared

somewhat:better-than national-income growth in 2002, 3.4.percent-versus: 2.8 percent'nationally. On-a per

-+ capita-basis, Wisconsin fared even better.Per capita income increased 2.5 percent in Wisconsin compared
to'l, 8 percent natlonaﬂy - :

= Wasconsm s empioyment situatien is-stabilizing. .. By October, Wisconsin non-farm employment was 0.2
.- percent ahead of a year ago. Nationally, employment was down—0.2 percent. Wisconsin's unempioyment
-rate in October'was 5.4 percent. compared tor 6.0 per{:ent rzatzonaﬁy : :

Wisconsin’s property values were msuiaicci from the recession. Real ﬁropertj} values incréased
significantly in 2002 .and-2003. - Total values increased 7.5 percent annually in both 2002 and 2003.
' Commerczai manufa;:mrmg and residential real estate all mcreased mgmﬁcantly in both years. -

Desplte the recession; Wascsnsm has matched or- exceeded the nation’s economic performance in recent

years. : - o

* Wisconsin’s unemployment rate remains well below the nataonal rate.

s . Since the 2000 census.the state’s population grﬁwth has been the second highest for Midwest states as

. peoplereiocate to Wisconsin. -

e AL91.6 percent af popuiatmn Wascozasm has the second hlghest heaith insurance coverage rate in the .
L eountry e : : '

Wlscensm has the e}evemh lawsst poverty rate

Wisconsin’s median household income of $46,352 is the fourteenth highest.in the country, 7.7 percent

above the national average. .

Looking ahead, Wisconsin’s recovery should match the national recovery.. With the stemming of losses in

-manufacturing, the expansion in services, finance and utilities should increase total nonfarm empioyment
by 0.1 percent in 2003 and by 1.2 percent in 2004. Nationally, nonfarm employment should decrease -0.3
percent in 2003 and increase by 1.1 percent in 2004,

The expansion of employment.should strepgthen Wisconsin’s personal income growth, Total persénai
income should grow:by 3.5 percent in 2003 and by 5.0 percent in.2004. This is comparable.to natmnai
growth of 3.2 percent mn. 2003 and 5.2 percsni in 2004.

. MAJ OR INITIAT}VES

Ecunomic Beveispmant. In 26(}3 the State commued its efforts to expand existing busmesses attract
new companies to Wisconsin and provide venture capital to small, high-growth Wisconsin-based firms.
Major tools used in these efforts are the Wisconsin Development Fund, the development zone programs
and the Certified Capital Companies program (CAPCO). The State awarded $9.57 million during Fiscal



Year 2003 from the Wisconsin Development Fund, primarily through the major economic development
program, customized labor training grants and technology development grants and loans. The Wisconsin
Development Fund also provided 333 entrepreneurial training grants to assist in small- ‘business
development. To date, $214 million of a total $275 million in tax credits have been awarded under the
“Conumunity “and:Enterprise ‘Development Zone programs,- resulting in-almost 50,000 -jobs created or
‘retained and leveraging $2.43 billion in private investinent. Twelve high-technology firms eligible for
$1.7 million in tax credits were certified under the newest program;-the Technology Devdopmem Zong
program. Since its establishment in 1999 three CA?C()S have mvested almost SZ(} mﬂhon in }4
‘Wisccnsm compames : - e S

: .The State aiso offers a va:ne’f:y Of programs that mget nnnenty busxness deveiepment and cemmumiy-
- based- economic’ development. Additional ‘economic ‘development funding was provided in Fiscal Year
2003, through the use of Native American gaming compact revenue for grants and loans to Native
American and other businesses affected by gaming operations. Also, $500,000 was made available for the
- Tech’Star initiative, ‘which awards grants to academic institutions in southeastern Wisconsin for research
" ‘on emerging technologies promoting industrial and economic development. - State investment in Tech Star
and the Technology Development Zones illustrates Wisconsin's: continued commitment to-help. starmp
busmess:es especa&ily in areas of mformatwn techmiogy and inotechﬁology :

" In additmn, the State continues 1o cffer resadents and visitors many Oppcrmnmes to enjoy Wasconsms
abundant natural;: historical and .cultural resources. - In Fiscal Year 2003, the State expended .over $9.2
million to market Wisconsin as a national and international tourism destination, assisting a tourism
* industry that pumped over-$11.7 billion into Wisconsin's economy (a 120 percent increase since: 1993) and
directly or indirectly supports approxsmateiy 323, 7"00 ]ObS :

Transportation. The State commued to ‘make s1gmﬁcant investments i transpertamon mfrastmculre
through expansion in highway capacity and reconstruction of existing highways and ‘bridges. - In 2003,

" almost 844 miles of State Trunk Highway {STH) ‘and ‘local highways were improved and 422 deficient

* state and local bridges were rehabilitated or replaced. Also, in 2003 the State contributed. $31-million to
continue preliminary work on the southeast Wisconsin freeway reconstruction project. In all, more: ‘than
$630 million in construction projects on STH and lecal road systems was contracted through the Wisconsin
Department of Transportation. S :

Wisconsin also distributes State transportation user fee revenues to local governments for transportation
“infrastructure improvements -and transit operating assistance. ‘In Fiscal Year 2003, $533. million was

" transferred to local governments for these purposes.

Environment. Wisconsin's Warren Knowles-Gaylord Nelson Stewardship Program and its successor, the
“Warren Knowles-Gaylord Nelson Stewardship 2000 Program, underscore the State's role -as a national
leader -inenvironmental preservation and enhancement: The original Stewardship Program committed

$250 million through the sale of general obligation bonds.and the use of federal grant monies for various

resource development and land protection activities, including acquisition of State park lands, protection of

urban rivers and assistance to local parks. The Stewardship 2000 Program commits $572 million over 10

vears through the sale of general obligation bonds to continue the State's efforts to protect and ‘enhance

Wisconsin's abundant natural resources. Expenditures for environmental preservation and improvement of

recreational opportunities under the Stewardship and Stewardshap 2000 programs totaled 331 4 miﬁmn in
: F;scai Year 2@93 : : :



- In addition to land acquisition threugh the Stewardship programs, Wisconsin's efforts to protect and
enhance its natural resources include partnerships with individual landowners. In November 2001, the
State entered into an agreement with the U.S. Department of Agriculture for the authority to enroil up to
~~100,000 acres of Wisconsin farmland in the Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program.  The:-federal
- - government will provide up to $200.million for the program, which will be matched by the State withup to
-840 million from the sale of general obligation bonds.  Landowners participating in the program receive an
up-front payment from the State and-annual payments from the federal government to install-and maintain
riparian buffers, wetlands and other practices-that reduce: polluted runoff -or, in. certain areas, improve
habitat for grassiand birds. Landowners may receive a larger up-front payment if they transfer to the State

. -an-easement: to- permanently: maintain the practices. - Through Fiscal Year 2003, Wisconsin has. entolled

. over 600 participants - and-over. 37,000 -acres -and:.has made ;:tayments {)f S!S 014 8(3@ The fcdﬂrai
government has paid landowners over'$2.9 million. : L

.- The first: instance of chronic wasting disease in Wisconsin was discovered in February 2002, which led to

- the-passage of 2001 Wisconsin Act 108. The act provided the: Department of Natural Resources with $4
;- ‘million for broad based testing-and managemant of the disease.. The department has: mapped the State into -
. various regions and has identified testing target areas in order to- map-the. disease; stop its sprea(i and
_manage the deer herd to: ensure successful deer hunts for generations to come. The 2003-05 b;mmal
“budget’ bill (2003 Wisconsin:Act 33) provided:the. department with-an additional $3.1 million to" support
“disease management efforts, including testing and disposal costs; pubhc outreach efforts, law enforcemem

. costs, and a radio telemetry study of deer movement:in the chronic wasting disease management area. -

Wisconsin's Environmental Improvement Fund program provides financial assistance to municipalities for
w:the planning;-design and construction of ‘pollution abatement . facilities - -primanly - for . wastewater
.- treatment. Most communities applying for-assistance receive subsidized loans; although some are eligible
«+ for partial grants through a hardship component of the program. Funding is provided from a State-matched
w:-federal capitalization: grant autherized through the Water Quality "Act, and through State revenue and
~general abhganon bonds. -In: Fiscal Year 2003, the Environmental Improvement Fund made awards to:’

" municipalities. amoummg 16.8205.7 million, bringing the total amount of loans and grants. awarded hy the

program to $2.0 biﬂmn since its mceptmn in 1991.

- The Petmiaum Environmental Cleanup Fund Award program (PEC?A) asmsts OWRers: of ieakmg-

+. petroleum storage tanks with-environmental remediation costs and has provided $1.292 billion for cleanups
at- 10,733 locations since 1988. Efforts continue to minimize claim payment backlogs.and i Improve site

closure methodelogaes while protecting the environment and public health. s

In addition to the PECFA program, Wisconsin has made a strong effort to reclaim contaminated properties,
or brownfields. In Fiscal Year 2003, the brownfields site assessment grant program provided $1.7 million
to 38 local governments to jump-start investigation and redevelopment of brownfield sites. After four
rounds of applications, 157 grants totaling $4.85 million have been awarded. Since June of 1998, the
brownfields grant program has awarded $29.97 million to 72 projects for the redevelopment of brownfields
where clean up will-have a significant economic as well-as environmental impact. The completion of these
projects-will return 830 acres of abandoned:or under-used environmentally contaminated sites to
productive use, increase taxable property values by $385 million and create 4,000 new jobs.

Wisconsin has historically been a national leader in recycling. Since its inception as one of the nation’s
first and foremost programs in support of community recycling, over $324.25 million has been provided to
municipalities to help defray the cost of operating effective recycling programs. In addition, the State has
provided . funds for innovative recycling: and waste reduction projects, inchuding $1:9 million annuvally for



the Recycling Efficiency Incentive Grants program. The program rewards municipalities for: cfﬁczencws
achieved thmugh censehdation of and cooperatwe agreements batween local recyc]mg SErVICes. .

- Hnman Resaurces The Famﬁy Care pilot contmued in Fiscal Year 2{}(}3 Begun in F1scal Year 2000,
Famiily Care is-Wisconsin’s innovative redemgn of the long-term care system: for the elderly and disabled.
-+ In- Fiscal Year: 2003, ‘Family ‘Care's nine- ‘resource -centers. made nearly 9,000 referrals fo individuals
‘needing information and assistance related to long-term care services. Family Care's five care maﬂagement
Grgamzatmns saw: anml}ment rise to 7 89, up fmm 6, 966 at the end of Fiscal Year 2002 -

= In Fzsca} Year 2(}()3 the I}epartmem of Healx;h and Farmly Servzces unpiemented SemorCare Wmmnsm §
“‘new prescription: dmg ‘assistance programs for the elderly. - Applications were-accepted begmnmg mn July
2002. As of June 2003, 89,970 low-income seniors were enrolled in the program. SE

In Fiscal Year 2002, the Department of Health and Family Services facilitated .over 1,100 -adoptions of

: Specmi needs ‘children. The: Specaai Needs: Adoptmn Program  finds adsptwe ‘homes for children with

L unigue’ néeds. ‘These children may be sibling’ groups of 3-ofr more. placed togeiher children age’ 10—18 or
e chﬂdren Wzth emonenal behawer and developmentai d:sabxhties Bl 4

Cmmmal penaity statutory cha.nges went into eff&ct in: F;scal Near 2003. These changes revise: feiony

“¢lassifications to- more accurately reflect the crimeé committed. The changes will improve the. criminal
justice system and help reduce incarceration costs because the additional classifications will provide: better
guxdance for maposzng penaiue:s

Educatmn Staie aicis and tax eredits’ apphed to support 2002-2@03 school year costs totaled 55. 3 bﬂhon
- “As part of this state aid commitment. funding for the SAGE program, which: provides ‘grants to: school
- districts'to lower class size in grades Kindergarten through 3, increased by 19 percent in Fiscal Year 2003,
“from $75.9 million in Fiscal Year 2002 t0:$95.0 million in Fiscal Year 2003. This allowed 548 individual

-+ schools in 231 school dlstm:ts to lower class sizes n ‘the 2001 2602 school year Over 25 perceﬁt of

‘Wisconsin's schools participate in the SAGE program.

As part of the 2001-2003 biennial budget, the Building Commission was granted authority for up to $158.5

million in “general fund supported- borrowing for the University of  Wisconsin—Madison’s BioStar

initiative. -Over the next eight years, BioStar will provide $317 million in state and private funds to build
new research laboratories in the biological se;ences that will kaep the Madison campus at the forefront of
biological research and education. - s

OTHER INFORMATION
; Independent Andlt
In compliance wath Wis. Stat Sec 13.94 i}(c) the State Legislative Audit Bureau has perfermad an
examination of the State's basic financial statements. The ‘examination was made in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards. Their report is contained in the Financial Section which follows.

Award

The Government - Finance  Officers ‘Association: of the United States and Canada (GFOA)-awarded a
“Certificate -of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting” to the State of Wisconsin for its



. Cb@?ﬁéﬁéﬁéﬁ% Annual Financial Report for-the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. The Certificate of
~Achigvement 13 a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards f@r
preparation of state and local government financial reports.

- i In order to be awarded a Certificate Gf Acﬁie#ément"' a geve%ﬁﬁieut unit must publish an easily readable

- and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program

. standards. Such reports must satisfy. both. gene:raﬂy accepted accounting principles and applicable legaI
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is vahd for a permd ot one year anly Thls is the seventh year the State of
Wisconsin has received this award. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Cerﬁzﬁcate
of Achievement Program requirements, and we are Subimttmg it to the GFOA.

- ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

- We wish to ‘express our appreciation to the many individuals whose dedicated efforts have made this report

] possible. The preparation of this report.could not have been accomplished without the professionalism and

~dedication demonstrated by the. financial managers and accountants of the State agencies and component
- units, along with staff within the State Controller's Office. :

~ Sincerely,
- Matc J. Marotta ' | ‘William J. Rattery, CPA
. Secretary : _ State Controller
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State of Wisconsin | LEGISLATIVE AUDIT BUREAU e MueLLE

22 E. MIFFLIN 8T., 8TE. 8
MADISON, WISCONSIN 537
(608) 266-281

FAX {08} 267-041

Leg.Audit. info@dlepis.state wii

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Members of the Leglslatm*e o The Hon.orabl-e.]ames Doyle, Governor

We have au&;ted the accempanymg ﬁnanmal statements c;f the govemmentai activities, the busmass~type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of Wisconsin as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, which
collectively constitute the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial siatemems are the responsxbxhty of the State of Wisconsin’s management. Our responsabzhty 18
't express opinions on these financial statements. based on our audit. We did not audit the following
financial statements: the Wisconsm Department of Transportation Revenue Bond Program and
Commercial Paper Program, which represent 12 percent of the liabilities of the governmenta] activities
and 2 percent of the revenues of the aggregate remaining fund information; the Environmental
Improvement Fund, which is a major fund and represents 17 percent of the assets and 18 percent of the
liabilities of the business-type activities; or the College Savings Program Trust, which represents

1 percent of the assets of the aggregate remaining fund information. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as
they relate to the amounts audited by others, are based solely upon their reports. In addition, we did not
audit the ﬁuanc:ai statements of the dascre‘ceiy presented component units, Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors. Our opinion on the aggregate discretely presented component units is
based solely upon the reports of the Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority, the
Badger Tobacco Asset Securltazatxon Corparatmn and the Umver51ty of WISCOHSIB Hospitals and Chmcs
Authority, - : : _

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statements of the Wisconsin
Housing and Economic Development Authority, which were audited by other auditors, were also audited
in accordance with these standards. The financial statements of the other funds and component units that
were audited by other auditors upon whose reports we are relying were audited in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, but not in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards. Auditing standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements previously
referred to present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Wisconsin as of June 30, 2003, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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. As discussed in Note 18 C to the financial staternents, the Patients Compensation Fund’s projected
ultimate loss Hability is an estimate based on recommendations of a consulting actuary. The Patients
Compensation Fund Board of Governors believes that the estimated loss hability is reasonable and
adequate to cover the cost of claims incurred to date, However, uncertainties inherent in projecting the
frequency and severity of large medical malpractice claims because of the Patients Compensation Fund’s
- unlimited Hability coverage, and extended reporting and settlement periods, make it likely that amounts
paid will ultimately differ from the recorded estimated liabilities. Thesc differences cannot be quantified.

- Management’s dlscussaon and analysm the mﬁ"astrucmre narrative, and the budgetary comparison

 schedule with related notes as listed in the tabie of contents are not required parts of the basic financial
statements of the State of Wisconsin but are su;aplememary information required by the Governmental
Accauntmg Standards Board., We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inguiries of management regardmg the methods of measurement and presentation of the reqmred
suppiemeniary mfermatmn However we dld not audit the mformat;on and express no opinion on it

S Gur auiht was conducted for the purpose of fermmg apmxons on ih{: financial statements that collectively

constitute the State’s basic financial statements, The combining statements and scheduies in the
. supplementary information section as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis’ and'are not a reqmred. part of the basic financial statements of the State of Wisconsin,
The combining staternents and schedules have been sab;ected 10 the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opmien, based on our audit and the reports of other
~ auditors, are fairly presented in all materlai respects m relatlon to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole :

The mtroductory section and the statistical sec‘aen hsted n the table of contents have not been subjected
to the: auditmg procedures apphed within the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
- express no opmlon on them

".-In accordance w;th Governmem Audztmg Smndards we have’ prepared 4 report dated December 12, 2003, S

on our consideration of the State of Wisconsin’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. A more detailed version
of that report will be included in the State’s single audit report. The report on internal control and
compliance is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be read in conjunction with this independent auditor’s report in considering the results of our
audit,

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT BUREAU

%,:% /@a{w

Janice Mueller
State Auditor

December 12, 2003 by
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

~The Management's Discussion and Analysis of the State of Wisconsin's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
i presents:a discussion and analysis of the Slate’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2003. it
ﬁshcufd beread in can;unchon with the transmetiai letter located -at the front of this CAFR, and the State’s financial statements
- “which follow this part of the CAFR. :

" FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS -- PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
_'._:-Government-wnde {T: abies 2 and 3 on Pages 21 and 22)

e Net Assets The assets of tha State o? Wasconsm exceedect its habzitties at the cfossa ef F:sca% Year 2003 by %131 ba%hon
{reported as “"net assets”). Of this amoani $(4 5) billion was reported as "unrestricted net assets”™. A positive batance in

. unrestricted net assets would represent the amount a\/allabte io be used to meet a government's ongoing obligations to

" ciizens and creditors. .

e 'Changas in. N&t Assats The States total net assets decreased by 57 bsEhon in Fiscal Year 2003. Net assets of
© governmental activities decreased by $670.8 miliion or 8.8 percent, while net assets of the business-type activities showed

" a decrease of $77.8 million or 1.2 percent.

» Excess of Revenues over {under) Expenses — Governmental Activiies, During Fiscal Year 2003, the State’s total
revenues for govemmeﬁtai activities of $19.4 billion were $408.0 million more than lotal expenses for governmental
activities of $19.0 billion. - These expenses were $6.8 billion more than the $12.2 bifion generated in taxes and other
“general revenues " for govemmenial programs {before special itemns and transfers).

f;Fund

S 'Govemmental Funds — Fund Balances, As of the close of Fiscal Year 2003, the State’s governmental funds reported '

" combined ending fund balances of $(1,303.3) million, a decrease of $892.2 million in comparison with the prior year. Of
this total amount, $(2.8) billion represents the "unreserved fund balances”.

+  General Fund — Fund Balance, At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance for the General Fund
was $(2.6) biffion, or (16.3) perceni of total General Fund expenditures,

Long-term Debt

» The State's fotal long-term debt obligations (bonds and notes payable) increased by $172.1 million during the current fiscal
year which represents the net difference between new issuances, and payments and refundings of oulstanding debt. The
key factors contributing fo this increase was the issuance during the fiscal year of $415.2 million of general obligation
bonds and $285.6 miliion of revenue bond obligations, and early redemptions and refundings of general obfsgatson borads
Addifional detall regarding these activities begins on Page 28.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" The Financial Section of this CAFR consists of four parts: (1}.ma'na'gemeht‘s discussion and anal'ysis (this sectioh}, {2}
~ basic financial statements, (3} additional required supplementary information, and (4) optional other supplementary
- information. Parts (2), {3), and (4] are briefly described on the following page:
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Basic Fmancial Staiemenm

The bas;c fi nancual statemems include two sets of statements that present different views of the Slate -- the govemmentvmde
financial statements and ihe fund financial statements." These financial statements also include notes that explain some of
the anformaiion in the financial statements and prawde more detail,

Govemment-w:da Fmancual Statemenis

The gowarnmantuwrde fi nanmat statemenfs provsde 2 bmad view of the Staie s cperations The statements prawde both shori-
term and-long-term information about the State’'s i nancial status, which assists in assessing the Stale’s financial condmon at
the ﬁﬂd of the fiscal. year The gcvemment—wade fmancaai statemenis ;nciade {wo statements: : R

. T_he statement of nez‘_-as_sets presents aﬁ of the governmeni’s assets and i‘zabtlstaes with the difference between the two
reported as “net assets”. Over time, increases of decreases in the states net assels are an mdscator of whethez its
ﬁnanc;al heaiih is improving or weakemng, reaspactweiy '

+ The sratement of actiwtfes presents a companson iaetween d:rect expenses and program revenues for each furactzon of the
'State S govemmentai actav:t;es and fcr dlﬁerent ;dentaf abEe busmess«typa act;wtaes of the State.

The‘se govemmem&wide ﬁnan‘ciai statements are 'divided -inib'three categortes:

*  Govemnmental Act.'wﬂes - Most services generaiiy assocuated with State government fall into this category. including
commerce, education transportataon envnronmentai resources human relattons ‘and resources, generat executwe 3adacaa¥
and legislative.

. Busmess»'fype Actrwties ~ Those operaiaons for whlch a fee is charged to externa% users for goods and semces are
reporied in this category

. Discrete!y Presenied Component Units - These are operations for which ‘the ‘State has financial accountability but that
have certain ;nfiependent quahnes as well, The Staie 5 d;scret@ly presented component units  (all business-type act:wtles)
arer -
SRR Wxsconsm Hnusmg and Economic Devetopment Authoﬂty

- 'Wasconsm Health Ca;e Liabiiity insvrance Plan,
- Unwersaty of Wisconsin Hospitals and Cimtcs Authority, _ami
_ - Badger Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation
Complete financial statements of the individual componant units can be obtained from their respective administrative
offices. Addresses and other additional information about the State's component units are presented in Nole 1-B to the
financial staternents.

The government-wide financiai statements are prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the methods used by most businesses, takes
into account all revenues and expenses connected with the fiscal year even if cash involved has not been received or paid.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the State government, reporting the State's operations in more detail
than the government-wide statements. The basic fund financial staterments provide more detailed information of the State's
most significant funds.

The State has three kinds of fund categories. It is important to note that these fund categories use different accounting
approaches and should be interpreted differently.

« Governmental Funds — Most of the basic services provided by the State are financed through governmental funds.

Governmenial funds report information using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. These siatements provide a detalled short-term view of the State’s finances that assists in
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determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available to meet the current needs of the State. Because
this information does not encompass the jong-term focus of the governmantwwzde statements reconciliations are prowdad
_en the subsaqueni pag& of the governmental fund statements. The State has three major governmental funds - the
o General Fund, the ‘Fransportatlen Fund, and the Tobacco Setﬂemem Endowment Fund. Examples of non»ma;er
gevemmentai funds Enclude the Consawailon Funci iha Bond Sacuﬂty and Redemp’uan Fand and the Capaiai

' imprcvement Fund

e Proprietary Funds These funds are used to show activities that aperate more fike those of commerclal enierprsses Fees
- are charged for services provided, both to outside customers and fo other units of the State. Proprietary funds, like the
government-wide statements, use the accryal basis of accounting. The State has five major proprietary funds — the
. _Patients Compensation Fund, the Env;ronmenta JImprovement Fund, the Veterans Mortgage Loan Repayment Fund the
' “University of Wisconsin System and the Unemployment Instrance Resewe Fund Exampies of the States nmn—ma;or

" proprietary funds mcéude the i_oitery and the Heaﬁh lnsszrance Fund

» Fiduciary Funds — These funds are used to show assets held by the State as frustee or agent for others outside the State,
such as the Wisconsin Refirement System and the Local Government Pooled Investment Fund. Similar to proprietary
funds, these funds use the accrual basis of accounting' ‘Because the ‘State can not use these assets to finance its
-aperatleﬂs f;dumary funds are not lnciudad in tha government-«w:de fmanclal statements dtscussed above. :

Table 1, below, shcst how the raQUired parts of this §i nancsal report are arranged and relate to one another,

Table 1
Major Features of State of Wisconsin's Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
GOVERNMENT-WIDE
STATEMENTS FUND STATEMENTS
Governmenial Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
-1 Scope Entire State government {except  The activities of the State that are not The aclivities the State operates similario  Insiances in which-the State isthe
B fidutlary funds} snd the Stale’s proprietary or Bduciary. Covermmental private business. Exampies of proprigtary trustee or agent for somecne else’s
component units activilies are primarily firanced frough funds.include; . resources. Examples of Rduciary
. taxes, intergovermental revenues, and » Entarprise funds: funds include:
other nonexthange reverues, Examples of - Patients Compensation + Wisconsin Refirement System -
. povernmental funds mciuds: L e Environmantal improvernent. . . .« Losal Government Pocled . .7
= Genaral = . : ) - University of Wistonsia System investment -
+ Transportation -- Lottery « Unclaimed Property
+ Bond Security and Redemption « intermal service funds: » Coliege Savings Program Trust
» Caplta) Improvement - Technalogy Services
» Common Schoot - Facilifies Operations and
Maintenarce
Required financial s Statemant of nat assets » Balante sheet » Balance shest « Statement of fiduciary net assets
statements » Staterment of activities » Sisfement of revanues, expenditures, « Statement of revenues, expenses and Statement of changes in fiduciary
: and changes in fund balances changes in fund equity net assets
' « Staternent of cash fows
Accounting hasis and  Acorual accounting and economic  Modified acerual asesunting and current Accrual accounting and economic Accrual accounting and economic
measurement focus resource focus financial resouree focus resturces focus resources focus
Type of assetffiability Al assets and liablities, both Only assefs axpected 1o be used up and Al assets and liabiiities, hoth financial and Al assats and liabilities, both short-
information financiel and capital, and short- liabilities that come dus during the yearor  capital, and short-ierm and long-tem term ang long-term
term and long-term soon thereafter; no capital assets included
Type of inflow-cutflow  All revenues and expenses during  » Revenues for which cash is received Alf revanugs and expenses during the Al revenuas and expenses during the
information the year, ragardiess of when cash  during or soon after the end of thevear  year, regardiess of when cash is received  year, regardiess of when cash is
is received or paid « Expenditures when goods or services  0F paid received of paid
have been recaived and payment is due
during the year or soon thereafier
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':'_Addztmnal Raqmred Supp!ementary lnformation -

In aciciltzon 1o thls Maﬁagemen’ts Slscussmn and Ana!ys;s whtch is requnred sugpiemeniary mformation the basm fi nancial
_ statements are foiiowed bya section’ of requured supplemental information that further exptasns and supports. the mfoz‘mataon in
the fi nanmai statements The req&zred supptam@niary information inc judes (1) condition and maintenance daia regardmg the
-Siates infrastructure, and (2) a b&dgetary comparison schedule of the General, Transportation and Tobacco Sattiement
__Endowment funds, mcludsng recancaisatians between the siaiutory and GAAF’ fund batances at fiscal year-end

' Other Supplementary informat;on
3'The Other Supp%ementary informataon lncfudes combineng fi nanclai statements for nohmajor governmenia funds nonma;or

-"'propnefary funds, internal service funds and fiduciary fﬁﬁds each of which . are added together and presented in s;ng
§umns in the basac fanam:tal statements
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~FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE AS A WHOLE
' Tébies 2 é'ntf':s ba'ioi_r;, bt‘es_enjt sum-mary_info'ri’h_atioh of theStates .he_t assets and changes in nef assels.
' '-:'__"_"Net Assets

: -As presented in Table 2, total assels of the Stata on June 30, 2003 ‘were $27.3 billion, while totat liabilities were $14.2 bai ton
'-gmsultmg in combined net assets (government and business-type activities) of $13.1 billlon. The largest component of the
“State’s total assels, $i3 9 hiilion-or approxsmately 106.3 percent reflects its investment in-capital assets {i.e., land, buﬂdmgs
":'_:-_}aqument mfrastructure and others), less any related debt ouistandmg that was needed o acqulre or congtruct the asseis
* “Approximately $3.7 billion were restricted by external SOUrCes oF - the Siate Constitahcn and were not avaliabie ofi nance the
L day—ia-day operations of the State : : :

The unrestﬂcteci net assets which :f pcszi;ve couid be used at the State’s drscret:on showed a negative batance of $(4 5)
biltion. Therefore no funds were available for drscretionary purposes. A contributing factor to the negative balance is that
: .-govemments recogmze a hab:hty on the governmenbwzde statement of net assets as soon as an obligation Is incurred, Whiie

: :ba ance of ${2 2) billion at year»end as dtsczsssed on Page 25 also contnbutecf io the deficit unrasirtcfed nei assets reported
L _m the statement of net asseis. . _

g _:The State’s generai obhgai;on bonds outstandmg sncreased by $415.2 msihon for Fiscal Year 2003. These i:sonds were ;ssued
~primarily for the: acquisition or smprovement of land, water, property, -highways, buildings. equipment or facﬂmes for pubhc

purposes, to refund a portion of outstandmg general obhgatmﬂ bonds, and to fund veterans housing foans. Outstanding

* revenue bonds whu::h are not considered general obhgatlon debi of the State, were $1.9 billion at June 30, 2003. . :

o Tai)le2
: NetAsseﬁs
L {mrmlions)
o Total
Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities T Activities “Totat - Change
_ 2008 - 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 20022003
~1° Curentand Other Assets & 43468 5 51764 3% 64751 66422 % 10,8219 § 11,8185 (B4 %
1 - Captial Assets 13,3138 12,7852 31305 30174 16,4444 15,802.3 FX I
Tota%Assets 176604 17,9615 BH05.7 5,658.3 272660 27,6208 1.3
; Longern Liabilities 5,407.1 50745 28308 28455 82378 7.920.0 40
Other Liabilities 53055 5268.4 6294 590.8 59350 5,859.1 13
Totat Lizhifities 10,7126 163429 "3.460.2 3436.7 14,1728 13,7790 29
Net Assels:
irvested in Capital Assets
Net of Relafed Debt 11,08G.1 10,857.6 25284 26030 13,9185 13,3506 43
Restricted 6576 5510 30129 30368 36704 1,580.8 22
Uinrestricted {deficit) 14,799.9) (3,580.0) 3042 4013 (4,495 8) (3,098.7) 451
* Total Net Assets g 60478 5 7BBE S 61454 % . 62232 § 35,0822 § 13,841.8 54)
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: f‘naﬁcmg focuses on' when a habtl;ty will ‘be . paui accountzng is pnmanty ‘concerned ‘with when a hablhty is mcurred :
Accordingly, the State recegmzas iong—ierm i;abuhines (such as. generai ‘obligation debt, compeﬁsated absences empioyer_
' fpensaon related éebt and future benefi 15 and loss habs?:taes - listed In Note 10 to the fi nancaal statamants) on 1he statement of
“net assets. In addition 1o the effect of reporimg Eong—term ilabiiaises when incurred, the General Funcis total deficit fund |



Changes in Net Assets

The revenues and expenses information, as.shown in Table 3; was derived from the government-wide statement of activities
and reflects how the State’s net assets changed during the fiscal year. The State earned program revenues of $1 2.1 billion
and general revenues of $12.2 billion for total revenues of $24.3 billion during Fiscal Year 2003. Expenses for the State during
Fiscal Year 2003 were $25.1 billion. "As a result of the excess of expenses over revenues, the total net assets 'of the State
decraased $. 7 billion, netof contnbuhons transfers, and spemai items.

~Table 3~ :
Qhangaes in Net Assets
{m mﬂllons) )
N Total
Governmental . - Business#ype Total Primary - - Percentage
Activities Activities Government . Change
2003 . -2aoz 2003 . 2002 003 2002 2002.2003
ngramﬂevenues S B P T TR RS S .
. Charges for Goods and Semces . U T 1?628 $ 11097 8 43918 § 41017 B 558545 §  B2114 - BB %
_ Operating Grants and Contributions = * 84287 49838 4973 2974 59230 52308 182
7 Capital Grarsisand Conznnwznons B 6354 8eu T EsE . U818 670.8 7308 T HBR)
General Revenues: ol S PSRN RN R
- IncomeTaxes ..o o .- . . .BBpo24 L 54183 - - 5502.4 54153 . 18
Salesand Excise Taxes 41024 40487 - - 4,102.4 40487 13
Public Utility Taxes 273.8 2440 . - 2739 2440 70 23
Motor Fuel Taxes _ 924.5 892.2 - - 924.5 Bg2.2 38
_ Other Taxes. . - - : : LLARES 4434 L - . 4836 434 9.1
OtherGeneral Revanues L A 1,368.8 182 1.1 840.2 13778 (518)
Total Revenues ' T30.432.7 18,9231 249428 A4716 24,375.3 PR 33
Commerce 224.4 1945 - - 224.4 194.5 5.4
Bducation .. - . : 5,675.1 54449 - - 5,675.1 54449 .. 42
Transporiation : 1580.7 1,714.2 - - 4,590.7 1,714.2 -1
. Erwironmental Resources CATB0 5320 - - 475.0 5320 {107}
Hurman ReanonsandResources _ o S 84882 . 79874 : - R 8,158.2 TO87A4 T 2
General Executive - 489.4 4285 . - 489.4 4238 155
Judicial WS 106.4 - - 107.8 106.4 1.3
Legislative 508 - . 5848 . . 50.8 59.9 0.3
Tax Retief ant Other General Expenditures 1,951.7 . 1,918.9 - - 1,951.7 191908 1.7
Inferest on Long-erm Debt _ 228 207.0° - . 2928 297.0 (1.5
Patients Compensation - - 1028 729 1029 729 41,1
Envirenmental impravement ) - - 42.6 425 426 425 02
Veterans Mortgage Loan Repayment - - 47.3 539 473 539 A )]
University of Wisconsin System - . 30755 2,935.2 30755 29352 A48
Unemployment inswrance Reserve - - 1,186.6 10718 1,186.6 0718 - T
Lottery - - 4189 4075 4188 4075 28
Health Insurance . - 762.0 655.8 762.0 B55.8 5.2
Cther Business-typs - - 486.3 4820 486.3 482.0 a5
Total Expenses . 98,024.7 86797 6.122.0 E7216 25,1468 24,401,3 3.1
Excess (deficiency) Before Special )
tterns and Transfers 408.0 4434 (1,179.4) {1,250.0) (771.5) (806.8} (4.4
Contributions to Term and Permanent Endowments - - 21 6.5 2.4 85 -t
Gontributions to Parmanent Funds/Endowments 208 180 - - 26.8 190 9.5
Transfors ) {31,089.6) {1,060.1) 1,099.6 1,080.1 . -
Special Hems - 1,275.0 . - - 12750 {400.0)
increase (decrease) in Net Assels ' 1670.8) B4 77.8) (185.4) {7486} 395G {251.8
Net Assets - Baginnirg {2003 Restated) CUTBIBE 80413 6,223.2 - BADBE T 138418 13,3479 37
Nef Assets - Ending S 650478 § 7HIBE § 81454 $ 62232 § 130832 § 13,8418 543




‘Governmental Activities

. '...?he net assets of govemmenta actavmes decreased $.7 biﬂiOﬂ in Ftscal Year 2003. Revenues for the governmental activities
- {including Cnntnbutfons o Permanant fund) totaied $19. 5 biltion, while expenses and net transfers totaled $20.1 bittion i m '
2003 '

: _:As shown in Table 4, below, approx:maieiy 58.1 percent of revenues from ail sources eamned came from taxes {sales and use,
. income, public utility, motor fuel, and other taxes). Operating and capital grants and contributions, which represent amounts
“received from other governmenis/entities — primarily the federal government — provided 31.2 percent of total revenues.
‘Charges for services contributed 6.0 percent, and vaneus other revenues provided 4.7 percent of the remaining governmental

o i-actavﬁy revenue sources.

Tabte A :
Govemmental Activit:es - 2003 Revenuas

-Saesana Excise - L
i Toes . Capital Grants st
. 2% FRE Contributions "
L : A
Public Uillity Taxes
1.4%

- income .'1-'axas
25.3%

Maotor Fusi Taxes
y 4.8%

Cither Taxes
2.5%

" Other General
B Revanues
: {}pﬂranngsrams ; \ TN U contrbutions e A T%
: : L Permanent
Funds/Endowmeants
0.1%

: 'Ch.a'rges for
Services
oo BO%

" As shownin Table 5, below, expenses for Human Relations and Resources programs make up the largest portion — 40.5
i percent - of total goverrimer;tal expenses and transfers. - Included in this function are various programs such as Medical
" ‘Assistance, the prison system, and the temporary assistance to needy families “TANF” program. ‘Educational expenses, which "
: mciude various school aids but exclude expenses of the University of Wisconsin System, make up 28.2 percent. Tax Relief
" and Other General Expenses, which include the municipal and county shared revenue program, represent 9.7 percent of the
‘total, while Transportation expenses represent 7.9 percent. Net transfers to business-type activities, which include a general
“purpose revenue "GPR" subsidy {o the University of Wisconsin System for various programs, make up 5.5 percent of the fotal
expensesfiransfers. The interest on long-term debt and remaining functional expenses total 8.2 percent.

Table §
Governmental Activities - 2003 Expenses

Tax Relief and Othar
Cenerai Sxpenses
tinciudes shared

revenue s Yranslom Envimnmentat

Resgurcas
24%

Edutaton {sxcludes
iniversity of
Wigtonsit System)
28.2%

interest on Long-term
Deit
1.5%

General Executive
24%

Commsine
Judiciat 1%

0.5%

Legishtive
Human Relations 0.3%
and Resources
40.5%
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Business-Type Activities

_ Revenuﬁs cf busmess~type activities totalad $4. 9 bithon for Fiscal Year 2003. These activities generated program revenues of
$4.9 billion and generaf revenues of §. 02 bathon The program revanues consrsted of $4 4 billion of charges for’ services, $.5
billion of operatmg grants and contﬂbﬁilcms and $ 04 bilfion of capital grants and contributions. General revenues consisted
solely of $.02 billion of other general revenues. The total expenses for business-type activities were $6.7 billion. Tabie 6,
below compares the program revenues and program expenses of the vanous State busmess-type activities.

“Table$ .
Fisca! Year 2003
Busmess«typa Activities
Comparison of Prog m Revennss to Program Expanses

$3,000
$2,500
$2,000

$1.500

Totais {in millions)

$1.000°

$s00 Bl Program Revenues |

‘ {excludes general |

! revenues) 1

s0 | |

: " - " e I | BRProgram Expensés |

Patients Envronmentat  Veterans University of - Linemployment  ~ Loftery Health . Othar L ]
Compansation  improvement Marigage Loan . Wisgonsin - ‘Insurance : Insurance Business-type |

Repayment - .. System. - Resewve

Business-fyps Activities
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: _fFlNANC!AL ANALYS!S GF THE $TATE'S ENB!V&DUAL FUNDS
_'_'Gavernmenta! Funds

o _At the end of Fascal Year 20{}3 the Staie s governmemai funds reportecf a combmed fund balance of ${1,303. 3) million. Funds
" with significant changes in funci baiance are discussed below:

.-".General Fund

_Tha General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At June 30 2008, the State's General Fund reported a total fund
e 'balaﬁce of ${2 242.5) maEIlon The net r:hange in fund balance durmg F;sc.ai Year 2003 was $(?58 7) milfion. While certam
;:-5. evenue souzces ;acmas&d over the prevzous ﬁscai year the change in cther %‘actors ‘stich as the increase in expenﬂitures '
._.outwetghed the’ pcs;’sve dzrecilcn o? revenues M&jﬁi‘ revenue expencﬁcture and otber sourcesiusas contrlbutmg o the change
"in fund balance are as foliows: o

i Rayenues

Reverxues cf the Ganerai Fund 1otaled $‘16 695 8 mil hon in Fssca} Year 2003 an mcrease of $247 1 miltion from Fascai :
Year 2002, Factc:rs ccntnbatang tothei mcrease anciuded the. followang

e Revenues from taxes mcreased $168 g mtl!aon fmm Fzscal Year 2002 to FlscaE Year 2003 The most significant

increase related to individual income tax wuthhaidmgs which increased $158.9 million of 3 percent. This increase’

. -Was ciue to the growth in wages in'the State durmg that period. - B

. lnte;govemmental revenues (e g federal assnstance) mcreased $494 1 miflion in Ftscal Year 2{}03 pramarsiy due to
an increase in expenditures that were eiaglbie for Fedaral relmbursament These ltems mcludeci an increase in .
benefits paid reiated to Medical Ass;stance and the. Waaver Program

. Intergovernmeniai transfers decraasad $37’! 3 mlif;on dunng Fiscal Year 2003. This change was due prtman y to a
decrease in the supplementary nursing home Medical Assistance payments that could be made under federal law
with funds recewad thraugh mtergovammentaé transfers (iGT) from certasn counties.” :

* Other revenues, such as charges for goods an_d se_wsces, _and gtft_s and gr_ams d'ecreased'$44,8 mitfion.

Expenditures

Expenditures of the General Fund totaled $16,195.9 million in Fiscal Year 2003, an increase of $314.1 million from Fiscal
Year 2002. The factors contributing to the increase inciuded the fonawing:

»  Anincrease in education expenditures of $248 3 milfion primarily resuiied from a 3.41 percent increase to the general
equalization assistance provided to the State’s 428 schooi districts.

s Cther functional expendztures increased $65.9 million.
cher Financing Sources and Uses

Other financing sources/uses and increases/decreases totaled a net $(1,258.6) million in Fiscal Year 2003, a change of
$(492.7) from the prior year. The components of this change included the following:

s In Fiscal Year 2003, the Siate transferred to the General Fund $287.1 million from the Tobacco Settlement
Endowment Fund. This amount represents the remaining balance of the original proceeds that had been created
from the sale of a portion of the State’s right to the Attorneys General Master Settlement Agreement of 1988. A
simifar Transfer in during Fiscal Year 2002 totaled $292.3 million.
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« During this fiscal year, contributions initially intended to be paid to the accumulated unused sick leave credit program
were msteaé transferred to the General Fund. The amount transferred from various funds to the Generai Fund
tolaled $38.6 million.

» _Transfers out of the General Fund totaled $1,746.8 million, a decrease of $146.3 million from the prior year. The
Iargest decrease in transfers out retated to transfers to the Medical Asgsistance Trusi Fund.

»  Other ﬁnancmg sources/uses and ofher increases/decreases resulted in a net increase of $27.5 million from the prior
fiscal year.

As of June 30 2003 the. General Fund reported ${2 638 2) million in its “Unresezved” Fund Balance. This cempares to a
_ General Fund Unreserved Fund Balance of ${1, 877.3) million as of June 30, 2002 ‘An unreserved fund balance represents
the excess of. the assets of the Genefai Fund over its iiabsittaes and reserved’ fund bafance aceounts. Reservatsons of fund
balances of govemmeniai funds represent amounts that are not available for eppropreation Examples of fund ba ance
reservations reported in the General Fund inciude reserves for encumbrances, inventories and prepaid items.

Due to a shortfall of revenues beginning in prior fiscal years, the State has taken steps to reduce expenditures. However, this
-did not prevent the deficitin the General Fund from increasing $758.2 million. As a resuit, the State may be reqmred io make
s;gmﬁcarai changes in future budgets wh;ch may reduce expeﬁdstures to recognize revenue shorifalls or examme alternaiwe
fundaeg straiegies L : '

Genera! Fund Budgetary H:ghbghts o

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were significant (a $2.6 billion increase in
appmprcat&cns) This was due primarily to the fact that several of the State’s largest programs (including Custody Accounts,
Food Stamps and the ma;ersty of Interagency Aids — see the Items *, below) are not included in the original budget. In
addition, numerous ‘adjustments to spending estimates” were needed as the year progressed because of changing
circumstances (spending needs can change dramatically over a one-year period). The largest variances incurred in the
fol!cwmg programs (in. maihcﬂs}

Pragram " ' o - Mariance’
- Generai Equal;zatlon Aids - S ' $ (54.9)
Federal Educational Aids; Local Aid ' ' - 100.4
UW System General Program Operations - Comprehensive Universities 51.0
UW System Academic Student Fees 80.2
UW System Federal Aid — Special Projects 873
Department of Health and Farmily Services Inferagency Aids 5996
Federal Aid, Medical Assistance 181.9
Dapartment of Workforce Development Interagency and Intra-agency Aids 56.0*
Food Stamps, Electronic Benefit Transfer 2266°
Department of Administration Federal Aid; Local Assistance 832
Custody Accounts 5986

Actual charges to appropriations {expenditures) were $1.3 billion below the final budgeted estimates. The most significant
positive variance occurred in UW System Federal Aid — Special Projects ($57.5 million).

During the past fiscal year the budgetary-based fund balance decreased for the General Fund, primarily due to increases in

ongoing entittement programs and a shortfall in tax revenues of $23.8 million. The decline in the General Fund balance was
indicative of the general downtum in economic conditions nation-wide.
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o "{obacco settlemeni Enﬁowment Fund

o 'The Tobacco Sett{emsnt Encicawment Fund accounts for all of the proceeds from the sale of the State’s right to receive
-payments under the Attorneys General Master Tobacco Settlement of 1808 and all investment earnings on the proceeds.
* The-fund generaied by the ‘proceeds iﬁtaled $3.4 million in interest earnings for Fiscal Year 2003, A transfer out of the

s _Tobacco Seﬁlement Endowment F_unsd portion 16 be: app_ked to the mumc_;spa% and county shared revenue program payment.

: '_Pmpnetary Funds
; .j.".The State’s propneiary funds provsde the same type of information found:in the government-wide financial statements but in

'more detail. Sign;f cant changes to baiances of proprietary funds from: Fiscal Yeaz 2002 to Fiscal Year 2003 mc§ude the
--_.'.-foliowmg ' - : :

'benefﬁ expenses ;ncreased from $1 071 7 msliaon inFiscal Year 2002 to $1 186.6 million in Fiscal Year 2003.
-m;ihon reﬂectrng a $977 miiEIOI} and' $106. 2 mi lion lncrease respectwaiy, due to the nszng sost of heaiih :nsszrance
S prem:ums paid to heaiiﬁ msurance prcvaders T -

8 Due io a dechne in new mcrtgage Icans and an increase n moﬁgage prepayments the Vetérans Mortgage Loan

B "mcreased $106 0. miillion or approximately 73 percent over the prewous ﬁscai year.

In Fiscal Year 2003, the University of Wisconsin System’s Tuilion and Fees revenue increased $63.0 mﬁiton or
_ -percent

Flduc:ary Funds

.. '.__Z:Stgmﬂcant chaﬂges to ba?anc&:s of fi duc:tary fund.s from Flscal Year 2002 o Fssca{ Year 2053 znt.;iude the foliowmg

'f.'-'n - Af June 30, QOGS, assets ._heﬁd in trust for pension and other ampioyee benefits totaled 356.2 bitlion, which represe_nis a
| pensson and other empioyee benef H trusts of $1 3 biilion or 2.3 percent from the previous year.

e - Net assets of the College Savings Program Trust Fund a prwate pﬁrpose fund, increased from $440.5 million as of durse
: --30,2002, to $856 5 million as of June 30, 2003. - : : S

- GOVERNMENT-WIDE CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

| -Capital Assets

- At the close of Fiscal Year 2003, the State had $16.4 billion invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $2.6
bililon. This represents an increase of 3694.5 miilion, or 4.4 percent, from Fiscal Year 2002. Depreciation charges totaled
-$97.8 million and $130.8 milfion for governmental and business-type activities, respectively, in Fiscal Year 2003. The detalls

_ _of these assets are presented in Table 7, below. Additional information about the State’s capital assets is presented in.Note 7
to the financial statements.
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B Tobacco Settlement Endowment Fund to the General Fund, totaling $287.1 million in Fiscal Year 2003, represents 1he

; '.Dﬁe o ihe mcreasmg unempioymeni and exiended beneflis payments in the Sta’te ihe i.lnemp oyment Insurance Reserve

' in Flscal Year 2003 the Health Insurance Fund s revenues increaseci to $769 Z m;thora and expenses mcreased to $?€2 0':

' 'Rapayment Funds mortgage foans racewabie has decl:ned $238.8 ‘milfion or 39.0 percent and 1ts cash balance has _

approximately 12.3 percent and its Federal Grants and Contracts revenue increased $144.3 million or approximately 28. 8

$233.4 million increase (0.42 percent) from June 30, 2002. This change reflects an increase in investments of the



Tahle 7
. Gapital Assets, Net of Depreciation, as of June 30
{in mitlions)
'G_c_:s_}emménfa}. . N :Buéingss_Type ) ) _ Total '
Activities . . - . -Agtivities . - - - . Primary Government .
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Land and Land Improvements $ 1268 ¢ 1,149 $ 114 3 100 $ 1,382 % 1258
Buildings and Improvements 1,277 1,203 1,804 1,673 3,081 2,876
| Library Holdings . . . . F _?’5__ o T4 __987 ) . 968 _ 1,081, o 1.041
.. Mathinery and Equtpment _ P43 o220 88 192 40 44
“Infrastruciure 9,352 C 9206 ¢ - 9,352 C8206
Construction in Progress 1,008 : 855 20 10 1,127 965
Totals 0% 133§ 12798 $. 3,431 & 2952 % 16444 § . 15750

.The major capﬁai asset addattoras completeci durmg F*scal Year 2003 sncluded the New Lesban Correctional ins‘ututzon {$3? 9
milfion expended), the Umverslty of- W:sconsm—Madzson Engmeemg Centers ($22 7 million expended), and the. Umve?slty of
Wlscons;mMadxson Chemistry Buiidmg Addition” ($19 1 million- expendecﬁ) In addstion to these compi eted projects,
construction in progress as of June 30, 2003 for governmental and busmess-type actlvxtles iotalad $1,098.5 million and $158.2
_miliion, respectwe {For busmass»type activities, $128.2. mulaon of construction in progress for the University of Wisconsin
System.is reported w;thm various other. caiegnraes of cap;tai assets H A list of censtfuctlon in progress projects is prov:ded in
Note 7. The State's p;‘oposed major capital projects for Fisca Year 2004 include the Cogeneration Plant — Unw&rs;ty of
Wzsconsmmi‘\dadl_scn (estimated budget of $80.0 million),

Debt Administration

The State of Wisconsin Building Commission, an agency of the State, is empowered by law to consider, act upon, authorize,
issue and sell ail debt obligations of the State. The total genera obi;gaiton debt outsiandzng for the State as of June 30, 2003
was $4 0 bni ion, as showa in TabEe 8 : . S s

Dunng Ftscat Year 2003 $4?52 m;tllon of these generat obhgatnan bcnds were lssued o prowde for the acqursmon or
improvement: of land, water, property, highways, bulidings, eqmpm&nt or faciiities for public purposes and refund current
outstanding bonds.

Chapter 18 of the Wisconsin Statutes authorizes the State to issue revenue obligations. These obligations, which are not
general obligation debt of the State, are secured by a piedge of revenues or property derived from the operations of a program
funded by the issuance of the obligations. Revenue bonds of the primary government totaled $1.8 billion outstanding at June
30, 2003, as shown in Table 8. These bonds included $1,137.5 million of Transportation Revenue Bonds, $188.1 million of
Petroleum Inspection Revenue Bonds, and $623.4 million of Environmental Improvement Revenue Bonds.

Table 8
Ouistanding Debt as of June 30, 2003 and 2002
(in millions)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2003 2002 S 2003 . 2002 2003 2002
General obligation bonds and notes $ 30809 $ 29634 § 91358 $ 09833 $ 40044 $ 3,858.7
Revenue bonds and notes 1,325.8 1,165.1 623.4 859.5 1,849.0 1,824.8
Totals $ 44185 54,1285 $ 15369 3 16528 $ 59534 $ 57813
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-+ Article VHI 'of the Wisconsin Constitution and Wis. Stat. Sec. 18.05 limits the-amount of general obligation bond debt the State
" ‘can coptract in total and in‘any calendar year, ‘In total, debt cannot exceed five percent of the value 'of alt taxable property in
© ‘the State.  The amount of debt contracted in any calendar year is limited to the lesser of three-quarters of one percent of
. -aggregate value of taxable praperty or five percent of aggregate value of taxable property less net indebtedness at January 1.

AL June 30, 2003, State of Wisconsin fixed bonds had é-r_aﬁhg of Aa3 from Moody's Investors Services, AA- from Standard and
" ‘Poor's -Corporation, and AA from Fitch Investors Service, L.P. Variable bonds had a rating of P-1 from Moody's, A-1 from
: Standard and Poors Corporation, and F-1 from F;tch lnvestors Semces L. P

'*.Detaﬂed mfnrmaiion aboui the State’s fang—term ciebt actw:ty is presenteci in Note 11 to the fi nancxat statemenis

| ?':'f"i'ﬁ'F:RASTRUCTuRE-L--‘Moul'f:tsb'A'PPmAm i

QThe Slate reports infrastructure (i.e., roads, bridges, and buildings considered an ancillary part of roads) as capital assets
o The State has eiected 1o report sts mfrastruciure assets (11 200 centerlme mtles of rpads and 4,800 bndges with a combaned
iy atue of $9.4 t:niiton) using the modified approach Under xms method, tnfrasimciure assets are. not requared to be depremated
7 ifthe State manages its ehgsbte mfrastructure asseis usmg an asset management system desxgned to mamtam ‘and preserve
;.' _; these asseis ata cand;tlon lwel estabhshed and r.iisc osed by the Siate . :

AH mfrastrucmre assets canstructed pnor tca July 1 2000 have heen recorded at estimated historical cost. Historical cost was
' j;'._'detarmaneci by caiculat:ng current costs of a similar assei and deflating thai cost, using a price-index, 1o the estimated average
_."constructlon date. Infrastructure costs, which exclude right of way, are expressed in 2000 dollars and deflated back to the
" average construction date using the Federai Highway Administration’s composite index for federakaid highway construction,

. An order to adequatély serve the traveling public and support the State economy, it is the State’s policy to ensure at least 35
. -percent of the state-owned roads and bridges are in good or fair condition. As of June 30, 2003, 95.7 percent of the rcads and
193 8 percent of bndges were in good or fair condition, consastent with State pnhcies

_-'_For the fiscal year endad June 30 2003, actual. mamtenance and preservatzon costs for the State's road network were $336.7
-~ million, or $84 2 mriEton less’ than the estzmated amount On that same date, ‘actual mamtenance and presewailon costs for.

' '-':"the State's bridge network were $45.7 million, or $0.7 million less than the estimated amount. In developing estimated costs at

: 'the beginning of the fiscal year it is difficult to predict the types of projects that will actually incur costs during the year. Actual
‘maintenance and preservation costs for the road network reflect an unanticipated shift from maintenance/preservation projects

" 1o. capital congtruction projects during the Fiscal Year 2003. In addition, the State of Wisconsin, Department of

' :-Transponaﬁon‘s multi-year budgeting process, allowing encumbrances to carry forward, makes a comparison of actual to
-estimated amounts difficult since expenditures for the current year may have been budgeted and committed to a project in
prior years.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

In 2002 and 2003, the Wisconsin economy reflected the slow national recovery. After averaging 2 percent growth annually
from 1881 to 2000, Wisconsin's employment declined (1.2} percent in 2002, Employment recovered in early 2002 and then
began a second decline in 2002 that continued though mid-2003. Expansion again took hold in April. By October 2003,
employment increased 0.2 percent over the prior year. Unemployment averaged 5.5 percent of the abor force in both 2002
and 2003. However, unemployment was on the rise at the end of 2002 and on the decline in 2003. Job gains in business
services and health care are offsetling losses in manufaciuring and construction,

“Personal income growth weakened with the employment losses. Personal income growth slowed throughout 2001, it steadily

improved throughout 2002. Income growth averaged 3.2 percent in 2002. Wisconsin's income growth outpaced the US
average, 2.5 percent, and the average for its region, 2.4 percent. Through the first half of 2003, income growth is still
averaging 3.2 percent and remains ahead of the rest of the region and the U.S. as a whole.
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Wisconsin's property values have been insulated from the recession. ‘Real property values increased significantly in 2002.
Total values increased 7.5 percent in 2002. Commercial, mani:fac:turmg, residential and forest real estate all increased
s:gnaf’ cantly In 2092 new construcinon added $8 7 billion fo real properﬁy values in Wusconsm up from $7. 5 billion in 2001.

inﬂataoﬂ in W:scaﬂsm has been mcciest As measured by the Mitwaukee—Racme CSA consumer price index, znfﬁatton in 2002

dropped f:p *3.:_3 pefcen.t.- from. a year.-ear-ilea. In the first-half of 20031_ .!ﬂf‘?_at.ion has increased to 3.0 percent.

CONTACT!NG THE STATE’S FiNANCiAL MANAGEMENT

This. ﬁnancual report is desugnad o prov;de Wasconsen s cstszens taxpayers customers investors and cmdltors w1th a general
overview of the State's finances and o demonstrate the State’s accoumabiﬁty for the money it receives. Questions about this
report or requests for acidstlonai fi nanmai tnformatlon should iae addrassed to: State of Wisconsin, State Controller's Off ice,
101 E. Wilson Street 5th Floor, Madison, Wi 53707.

The States component umts isskie theur own separateiy issued aud;ted fi nanczal statements. These siatemer’its 'may be
_obtamed by cilrec:tiy coniactmg the mmponent unit, You may contact the md:vedual component urits through their
_admmistrauve offces adenﬁf ed zn Note 1~B

* k &
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. State of Wisconsin .

. Statement of Net Assets
“June 30, 2003

{in Thousands)

Primary Government
Governmental ~ Business-1ype o Component
" Activities . Activities Totals . - Units
. Assels i
-Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,402,063 $ 2,692,035 § 4,094,008  § 198800
Jnvestmenis 152,280 1,326,563 1,478,853 478,449
- Receivables (net) 2,362,964 2,200,837 4,563,801 1,862,284
~internal Balances 6,818 (8,619} - -
¢ - Anventories 46 488 37,310 83,798 6,485
. Prepaid tems 349,491 116,458 465,949 2,848
-Capital Leases Receivable -
. Component Units - 22,827 22,927 -
.o Restrigted and Limited Use Assets: L L
~ash and Cash Equivalents - 64,135 64,138 97,374
o investments o : - - - 642 484 -
i Other Receivables . - - S 80
- Deferred Charges - 26,182 13,300 39,482 28,034
[+ Capital Assets: : T
- Depreciable 1,420,315 2,003,958 3,424,273 224,023
. Nondepreciable: ¥
o Infrastructure 9,352,302 - 9,352,302 -
S Other 2,540,944 1,126,561 3,667,505 25,829
Other Assets 694 8,198 8,292 9,565
Total Assets 17,660,352 9,605,663 27,266,015 - 3,566,775
. Liabilities
_"Acoounts Payable and Other - R
v Accrued Liabilities 1,630,876 369,724 2,000,600 128,873 -
~:Due 1o Other Governments 1,643,165 27,521 1,670,686 1,556
* Tax Refunds Payable 1,043,458 R 1,013,459 .
.- Tax and Other Deposits 30,873 15,548 48,422 101,888
~ Deferred Revenue 349,712 189,148 538,860 1,100
.- interest Payable 62,680 11,544 74,224 75,368
- Short-term Notes Payable 574,769 15,832 580,701 -
“tong<erm Liabilities: o
Current Portion 402 087 366,615 768,702 87,593
Noncurrent Porlion 5,004,974 2,464 212 7,469,187 3,803,764
Total Liabilittes 10,712,584 3,460,247 14,172,841 4,200,144
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 11,080,111 2,828,388 13,918,490 85,005
. Restricted for: |
Transporiation Programs 66,744 - 86,744 -
Debt Service 25,991 - 25,991 -
Unempioyment Compensation - 1,217,032 1,217,032 -
Environmental Improvement - 853,656 953 656 -
Permanent Trusts:
Expendable 8,414 181,388 190,802 3,704
Nonexpendable 548 9258 99,078 646,004 815
. Other Purposes 8,504 561,705 570,208 381,702
Urrestricted {4,799,930) 304,187 {4,495,763) 1,104,584}
Totai Net Assets 3 6,047 758 & £,145416 § 13,083174 § (833,369}

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Wfs'con'sin
Statement of Activities . -
For the F}scal Year Ended June 30, 2003

(in Thousands}

Program Revenues o
Operating Capital

TP ST . -Charges for Grants and Grants and
Fancﬂoasll’mgrams "~ Expenses . Bervices Contributions Contributions
Pr;mary Govemment

.. Governmental Activities: R I . L
~Commerce - .. - = 224377 % 148,083 % 35549 § L.
. ‘Education TR CoL - BeTs3s o 22,332 614,241 T -
Transportation S ' S 4,500,710 436,829 83,974 627,000
Environmerdtal Resources o 474,968 177462 61,896 122
" Human Relations and Resourges 8,158,215 130,524 4,329,717 © 7,380
General Executive 489,442 191,304 234,556 . -
dudicial _ _' _ : 107,835 46,377 631 ' : -
Legislative” : | Bg7ES 1418 - T
Tax Relief and Other Genera! EXQEI'%SES . . B43.757 5,940 - 55,161 AT
) Intergovemmemai o 1,107,958 Lo I - -
“interest on Debt : e : 292,’579_ 2.458 - : -
Total Govemmeﬂtal Actsv;tles 19,024,739 1,162,827 5425725 . 635402

Business-type Activities: IR ' S
Patierds Compensation - ) . 102,878 ¢ 104,221 - L -
Environmental Improvement 42,560 34,818 103,116 -
Veterans Mortgage Loan Repayment 47,280 35,541 - e
University of Wisgonsin System 3075475 1,940,491 191,277 . .33,443
Unemployment Insurance Reserve 1,186,584 614,232 202,466 . -
Lottery _ 418,944 - 435133 - -
~Healthinsurance = 00 S 764,885 .- 168,210 - I .
’ Other ‘Business- type ey T 486,321 ST ABT 283 397 < 2,67
Total Business-type Activities 6,122,037 4,391,828 497,258 35,514
Tota} anary Gevemmer;t $ 25148777 8 5554455 § 5922983 §. ... 670,818

CompoaentUnits S NI EA L o o .'
Housing and ' Econosmc Deveiapment Au%horaty : - 271,786 Co 133,581 126,210 SRR
Health Care Liability insurance Plan 13,456 : 16,585 - .-
University Hospitals and Clinics Authority : 533,813 547,792 449 856
Badger Tobaceo Asset Securitization Corporation 98,437 . 58,607 “ -
Total Component Units $ 917,192 % 748475 § 129,659 § - BEB

General Revenues:
Dedicated for General Purposes:
income Taxes
Sales and Excise Taxes
Public Utility Taxes
Other Taxes
Motor Fuel/Other Taxes Dedicated for Transportation
Other Dedicated Taxes
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Sg}ec:f c Programs
interest and Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions to Term and Permanent Endowments
Contributions to Permanent Fund Principal
Transfers

Totat General Revenues, Contributions, Special and
Extraordinary items, and Transfers

Change in Net Assels
Net Assets - Beginning

Néi Assets - Eﬁéing

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,




Net {(Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government
~Governmental ‘Business-Type .~ - _ Component
Activities U Activities T T “Total Units
(40,745) § - {40,745)
(5,038,565) - (5,038,565)
*(432,807) - (432,807)
- (234,589) - (234,589)
(3,690,504) - (3,680,594}
{63,582) - (63,582}
(60,828) - (60,828)
{58,339) - {58,339}
" (782,656) (782,656)
(1,107,958} - (1,107,958}
. (290,122) - (200,122)
11,800,788} {11,800,786)
- 1,343 1,343
. 95,374 95,374
- (11,740) (11,740)
. (910.264) (910,264)
- (369,186) (369,186)
- 16,189 16,1889
. 7,215 7,215
- {26,570) (26,570)
. - (1,197.637) (1,197,637}
(11,800,786) (1,197 837) (12,998,423}
$ (8.985) -
(2.872)
15,384
(41,930)
(38,402)
5,502,423 - 5,502,423 -
4,102,350 - 4,102,350 -
273,892 - 273,892 -
77,833 - 277,633 -
24,503 - 924,503 .
205,984 - 205,984 .
2 - 2 .
| 22,353 18,192 40,544 34,845
899,636 5 899,640 .
- 2,075 2,075 20
20,769 - 20,769 -
{1.099,608) 1,099,606 - -
11,129,938 1,119,877 12,249,815 34,865
(670,848) (77,760) (748,609) (3.537)
7,618,606 6,223,176 13,841,782 (629,832)
6,947,758 $ 6,145,416 § 13,093,174  § (633,369)



State of Wisconsin

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

36

June 30, 2003
{In Thousands)
. Tobacco B
Settlement Nonmajor Total -
General Transportation  Endowment Governmental Governmental
Assets
Cash and Cash Equwatents & 9,495 § 370,835 § - 3 988,581 § 1,366,920
Investments - 882 - - 151,408 162,280
Receivables (m«zt of estimated
uncollectible accounts): .
Taxes 1,095,198 93,636 - 25,321 1,214,155
Loans to Local Governments 14,882 - - 236,526 251418
Other Receivabies 180,439 5,176 - 20,372 206,987
Due from Other Funds 171,272 21,357 - 58,735 252,364
Due from Component Units & - - - 5
interfund Receivables - 486 - - 486
Due from Other Governments 552,235 90,845 - 13,267 856,146
inventories 13,010 20,885 - 2,448 36,343
Prepaid ftems 304,826 2,781 - 15,407 323,014
Advances to Other Funds - BRI - 1,850 1,850
Other Assels - - - 6594 .. 894
Total Assels 3 2342253 § 605,801 & - $ 1,513,619 § 4,461,672
Liabiiities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounis Payable and Other i
Accrued Liabilities 5 597,620 § 101317 3 - % 195,553 § 884,480
Due to-Other Funds 182,020 43,508 - 74,222 269,749
Dueto Component Units 1,400 . - - - 4,400
Interfund Payables - 536,405 - - 486 £36,801
Due to Other Governments 1,557,111 82264 - 23,105 1,842,480
Tax Refunds Payable 1,008,648 3,598 - 213 1,013,459
Tax and Other Deposits 23,867 531 - 6,675 30,873
Deferred Revenue - 606,922 8,219 - 15,671 830,812
" Interest Payable - - - - 37,805 37805
Advances from Other Funﬁs - - - 4,334 4,334
Short Term Notes Payable - - - 543,643 543,643
CGeneral Obligation Bonds Payable - - - 100 100
Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable - - - 58,940 58,840
Total Liabifities 4,584,792 219,438 “ 960,746 5,764,976
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances 208,241 613,035 - 228,289 1,050,565
Reserved for Inventories 13,010 20,885 - 2,448 36,343
Reserved for Prepaid ltems 173,360 2,781 - 15,400 191,541
Reserved for Restricted Funds - - - 758 798
Reserved for Long-term Receivabias - - - 169,517 168,517
Reserved for Advances o Other Funds - - - 1,850 1,850
Unreserved, Reported In:
General Fund {2,638.150) - - - {2.638,150)
Special Revenue Funds - {250,338} - 155,582 {94,756)
CapHtal Projects Funds - - - {433,813) {433,813)
Debt Service Funds - - - 25,901 25,991
Permanent Funds - - - 386,811 386,811
Totai Fund Balances (2,242,539) 386,383 - 552,872 (1,302,304)
Total Liahilities and )
Fund Balances $ 2,342,253 § 805801 § -8 1,513,618 § 4.461,672
{Continued)



S‘tate of Wssc:msm o T
 Balance Sheet - Gavemmental Funds

* June 30, 2003
{Continued)
Total
Governmental
Reconcﬂiation to the Statement of Net Assets
'”t"otal F‘anc% Baiances from prewous page e 5 {1 ,353;'_3{34)
Capttal assets_-used_zrz_gavernmeniai -actwmas ara not financial '
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: R
Infrastructure . : 9,352,302
Other Capital Assels 4,237,904
Accumulated Dapreclahoﬁ ) (587,172)
' Other Et)r:g-term assets t?lat are not avaliabte to pay for current period ) - L
expenéliures and therefore, are deferred in the funds. . 31,265
' :_'Some of the Stata 3 reveaues will be aeilected after year-end but are not
‘available soon: enough o pay for the clrrent period's expenditures
and, therefore are defaneé in the funds. 280,550
Internal service funds are.usecf by management fo charge the costs of
certain activities, such as insurance and telecommunications, to individual
funds. The assets and jiabilities of theinternal service funds are included
in governmental activities in the Siatement of Net Assets. i (2,018}
Lang'-te'rm tiabéi%ﬁes;mdudéng bonds p‘ayébie,'are not due and payable in
the current pericd and, therefore, are not reponed in the funds. ) .
. Revenue Bonds Payable : (1,266,6486)
General Obilgatmn Bonds Payable (2,917,231}
;_Accrued Interest on'Bonds o o : (24.874)
- Capital Leases ™ T : {34,658) .
instaliment Ccntfacts {2,644}
Compensated Absences {101,294}
Claims and Judgments 2174
Employer Pansion Related Debt Costs (722,248
Net Assets of'Govamm'emal Acﬁvi!ias' as reported on the .
Stalement of Net Assets (Sees page 33) $ 6,947,758

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement.
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State of Wtsconsm

Statement of Revenues, Expendltures, and Changes in Fund Baiances -

Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 36, 2003

{In Thousands)

38

Tobasco
Settlement Nonmajor Total
General Transportation. Endowment Governmental Governmental
Revenues: Lol . R
Taxes - . $ 10,138,610 § 925 13? $ - 208,072 3 11,270,818
. _lntergovemmentat 5,224,798 721,617 . - - 38,243 5,984,658

Licenses and Permits 219,985 310,361 - 360,914 891,260

Charges for Goods o . B B
and Services 207,382 . _22,'9_85 - 17,150 247,518

investment and )

Interest Income 727 3,771 3,352 40,986 45,838
Finas and Forfeitures 271419 AG4 27,821 55,834
Gifts and Donations 2,028 e - 12,316 14 342
Other Revenues: : o

‘Intergovernmental Transfer 588,580 - . - 598 580

Tobacco Settiement 153,823 - RN - - 153,023

Other 7.0 121,310 13,621 - 4,539 139,531

Total Revsnues : 16,695,620 1,897,887 3,353 708,141 18,405,302
' Exp_en_ditar_es.

Current Operating: :
Commerce 183,753 - . - - 42,429 226,182
Education 5,621,308 - s - - 27,972 5,648,280
Transportation ©7,320 1,487,686 - 14,261 1,519,266

- Environmental Resources 114,877 o - 349,602 464,479

Human Relations and : o

Resources 7,715,005 - - 398,452 8,113 457
General Executive .. 398,051 - - 91,785 440,846
;. Judiciat _ 104,577 - - 354 104,930

. Legislative H,175 . - - - 60,175

Tax Relief and Other General ST RSN
- Expenditures 843,155 . - - 1,875 o B4BA30

3ntergovemmentat 1,137,958 - - - - 1,107,958

Debt Service:

Principal - - - 270,719 270,719

Interest and Other Charges N - - 226,468 226,469
Capital Quttay 38,741 430,585 - 222,260 691,586

Total Expenditures 16,185,820 1,928,271 - 1,648,287 19,770,479
Excess of Revenues Over S : : i
{Under) Expenditures 499,900 69,718 3,353 {938,146) (385,177
Other Financing Sources (Uses): .

L.ong-term Debt lssued - - - 506,524 506,524

Premium/Discount on Bonds - - - 31,840 31,640

Transfers In 470,947 118 - 763,092 1,234 157

Transfers Out (1,748,799} {38,171 {287,147) (246,071) (2.,319,188)

Instatiment Purchase Acquisitions 70 - - 2,793 2,863

Capital Leases Acquisitions 17,143 - - - 17,143
Total Other Financing

Sources {Uses} (1,258,629} {38,083) {287,147} 1,087,977 (526,862)
Net Change in Fund Balances (758,738} 30,663 {283,794} 119,831 {892,038)
Fund Balances, Beginning

of Year (1,484,338} 358,331 283,794 433,110 411,102)

increase (Decrease) in

Reserve for Inventories 536 {631} - {68) {164}

Fund Balances, End of Year (2,242.538) § 386,363 § 0 552872 % 1,303,304)
{Continued)



. State of Wisconsin

- Statement of Revenues, Expendltures, and Chazzges in Fund Balances -

Governmental Funds '
.-'Fer the F 1scai Year Ended June 30 2003

{Continued)
Total
Goverrmental
Reconciliation to the Statement of Activities:
Net Charige'in Fund Balances from previous page B $. . (892,038)
3nventorzes wi';lch are. recorded under the purchases method for govermmentai - '
fund reporting,-are reported under the consumption approach onthe
Staternent of Activities. 'As a result of this change, the Increase {Decrease)
in Reserve for Inventories on'the fund statement has been reciassified as
functional expenses on the _gqvemment«wnde statement, (1843
Repayment. of: bcﬁréd prmcl;ié! is 'repérted as an expenditure in the ' _
governmental funds; butthe: ‘paymerit reduces long-term Enab;lmes ) R
in the' Statemeﬁt of Net Assets . } L 270719 .
Governmer&ta! funds repcrt 1he acquisition or construction of capzta| agsets as '
‘expenditures, while governmenial activities report depreciation expense to
sliocate the cost of these assets over their estimated useful lfe, Donated
assels are set up at fair value with a coresponding amount of revenue
recogmzeé in the current period, these amounts are; . . : o
. Capital ODutlay/Functional Expenmtwes 682,223
" Depreciation Expense "~ {74,565}
Grants and Coninbutlons {Donated Assets) 1,672
T;'arisfers of f.ap;tal assets t_:etween govemmental and business-type.
activities results in the movement of those assets on the Statement of _
Net Assels and corresponding- recogmtson of the related transfer infout C
on the Statement of Acttwtles _ 741
in the Statemeﬁt of At:tlvmes, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is
-reported, while in-the governmental funds, the pfocaeds from the sale .
| increases financial resources. Thus, the change innetassets differs . 0
“from the charzge in fund balance by the cost of the capilal assels sold. i {71,072)
Revenues in the Siatement of Aclivities that do not provide current ﬁnanc!ai
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 7.862
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabifities in the Statement of Net Assets.
Bonds Issued . (506,524)
Bond Pramium o (31,640)
Bond issuance Cosis ) 2,861
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the '
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.
Net increase in accrued interest (2,176}
Increase in Capital Leases (7,904
Decreasein instaliment Contracts (1,395}
increase in Compensated Absences (13,235}
Increase in Claims and Judgments (202)
Increase in Employer Pension Related Debt Costs {15,245)
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of |
certain activities, such as insurance and felecommunications fo
individual funds. The net revenue {expense) of the internal service funds
is reparted with governmental activities. Co {20,568)

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities as reported
on the Statement of Activities {See page 35} § {B70,848)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of WiséanSin

Balance Sheet
Pmprletary Funds
June 30, 2003

{In Thousands)

Business-type Activities
Velsrans
Mortgage - -
Fatiants Environmentai ean
Compensation improvement Repayment
Assels
Curran: Assets : : o
{ash and Cash Equwalents 5084 § 197,832 § 252.006
Invesimenis 10802 30,661 -
Regeivables (net of esﬁmated uncolectible aecountsh:

{onas Receivable < 78,608 16,688
~Other Receivables 5,534 330 6,751
Diue from Qther Funds - . - 304 3z
. Due from Gomponent Units - 16 - -
" Due from Other Governments - B,343 -
invantories 1 - -
Prapaid flerns 7 4 69
Capital Laases Receivable - Camponani Units - - -
Deferred Charges . - 161

. Total Gurrent Assels 25,454 312,083 275846

MNonourrent Assets: .
investments . S 641,686 116,321 -
Receivabies {ret af tad flegtible accounts)

 Loans Reteivable . - - 1,118,800 375587
Prepaid ltems » - .
Advances to Othar szds - - -
Capifaf |.eases Receivable - (;omponent Umts - - -
Restricted and Limited Use Assets: - :

Cash-and Cash Equivalents - 64,135 -
Deferrsd Charges - 2,731 4473
Capitai Asgets (nefof amumulated depreciation} & - - 135

Other Assets - - 287
" Total Noncurrent Assets THd1 902 1,303,086 | 380,483
Total Assets BOT.446 1,615,168 656,128
Liahillties and Fund Equhy

Current Liabilities: :
- Acoounts Payabie and Other Accmed Ligbifies: 312 81 1,218
. Due fo Gther Funds 23 1,638 4,182
Due to Componant Units - - -
intarfund Payables - - -
De 1o Other Governments . - - B -
Tax and Other Deposiis - - 2
Advances frsmOi?ver Funds - D - -
- Deferred Revenye " 2832 &8
*infergst Pavable : L 748 5888
Short Term:Motes Payable -~ - - - -

Current-Portion-of Long-term Liabilities:

Fugure Benafits and Loss Liablities 74,375 - -

Capital Leases - - -

Instaliment Contracts Payabie - - -

Compensated Absences & 63 111

General Obligation Bonds Pavable - B 113,120

Revenue Bonds and Nolte Payable = 37,548 5

. Total Current Liabiities 77.551 42,075 121,618
Nomcurrent Liabilities:
Actounts Payable and Other Acorued Liabilities - -
Due fo Other Govemments - 3,141 -
Deferred Revenue - - 96
Noncurrent Portion of Long-term Ligbiiites:

Future Benefits and Loss Liabilitles 581,540 - -

Gaptal |.eases - -

Instaitment Contracts Payabie - - -

Compensalad Absences 23 28 183

Ganeral Obligation Bonds Payable - - 467 256

Reverive Bonds and Moles Payabie e Se5.BT3 :

Total Noncumrent Liabilites 581,963 580,042 467,514

Tolal Liabilities 859,514 631,117 588,133

Fund Equity.
Invasted in Capital Assels, Net of Related Debt - - 135
Restricted for Unemploymant Gompensation - -
Restricted for Environmantal improvement - 953,556 B
Resiricted for Expendsable Trusis - - -
Restricted for Nenexpendable Trusis - -
Resticted for Fulure Beriefils 1832 - -
‘Restricled for Other Purposes Cl - -
Unrestricted - 30,385 66 8651
Total Fursd Equity 7932 984,082 66,396
" Total Liabiliies and Fund Equily 667445 $ 1.615.18¢ § 656,129

‘Trhe notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this slatement.
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University of

Eusinass-!ype Aciiviiiés

Governmental
Activities «

34,126 .

Uﬂempiayrﬂenl : Irdernal
“Wisgonsin  insurance Nonmajor Service
" Bystem - Resarve Enterprise Totals Funds
3 550,344 § 1084171 § Eo2EBS § 2,602,435 35,142
- - 16,673 58,135 -
27,504 e 8,506 120,307 .
79,926 150,623 47,224 203,387 388
40,845 500 32,503 T4,185 26,680
1,831 - - 1,945 266
48,917 8,740 6,135 70,435 265
29,498 - 7813 37,340 8102
24,891 - 91,488 116,458 12,185
2,967 - . 2,67 -
5156 - - - 5,257 7
820,975 1,244,034 802,937 3,481,123 84,014
289,653 220,467 1,260.478
449,867 - - 60827 - 1,705,881 .
- - S - 14,293
T N - 2,984
19,860 N . 19,960 -
- - - 54135
- - &34 BO43 804
2862056 . 158,323 3,130,519 310,527
- - 7811 5198 e
3,42¢,236 ‘458,367 6,208,164 - ARBE07
$ 4,242.21% 1,244,034 § 1,261,288 § 0,586,287 #05.821
158,85¢ 5 18135 8 143 s 230,017 15,662
‘3B AT 1,970 38,545 78,538 4,542
1,560 - K 1572 3
i - 28,524 28,824 37,846
17,407 B.807 73 24,381 100
1,459 - 14,088 15,549 -
L HAG - N . m . -
- 194,820 - 91,503 189,052 4,488
2566 - Loadz 11,544" 1,756
14,151 - 1781 15,952
- - 72947 147,322 23,475
4157 - 358 4515 3453
43,863 . 3,383 47,449 1,063
14,510 - 1,754 128,784 7.495
. - . 37,545 .
392,239 27 802 303,038 963,524 " 131,263
. . 107 475 107575 11,872
- - B 3,91 -
. - - o6 5,837
. . 438,157 1,020,077 94,780
34,339 - 2,083 36 40% 2,204
- - - - 757
33,455 - 4524 36,193 1,587
276,217 - 40,196 783,667 166,049
: - . 585873 -
344,011 ° - 562,285 2 574,624 282,867
736,260 2r082 895,333 3,530,348 414,760
2,705,850 - - 122,402 2,628,368 74,555
. 1217082 - 1,217,882 -
- - - 953,656
181,508° - - 181,288 -
99,079 - - 95,079 -
- - 263,427 271,059 -
222,881 - §7,650 260,631 -
296,662 - (87.214) 305,704 fet9n
3505961 1,217,032 365,965 6,147,938 14,539)
$ 4242211 & 1244034 3 1,261,288 § 9,586,267 408,621
Fotaf Fund Equity Raported Above § 6,147,938
Adizstment to Reflect the Consolidation of Internal Service Activittes Related 1o Enferprise Funds {2,523}
Net Assets of Businessa-type Activities § 6,145,415
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State 'of Wisconsin

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Equity - Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

{In Thousands)

Business-ype Actlvities S
. e Veterans
S - Mortgage
Patients Envirenmental Loan
Compensation Improvement Repayment
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Goods and Services § 20,520 % - $ -
Parlicipant and Employer Coniributions . - - -
TFuition and Fees - - -
Federal Grants and Contracts - - -
Local ard Private Grants and Contracts - - M
Salas and Services of Educationat Activities - - -
Sales and Services of Auxitiary Enterprises - - -
Sales and Services to UW Hospital Authority B - .
Investment and Interest income 74,504 34,784 35,541
Other Income:. e .
Federal Aid for Linemployment insurance Program - - -
Reimbursing Financing Revenue . - - -
Other - - - 3 -
" Tolal Operating Revenues . 104,024 34 818 35,541
Operating Expenses:
Personal Serviges | 487 4,633 3,710
Supplies and Services 448 1,960 884
Lottery Prize Awards - - .
Scholarships and Fellowships : - - -
Depreciation : & - 43
Benefit: Expense - : : 101,837 - - "
Interest Expense - 34,646 38,283
Other Expenses - - 2,858
" Totai Operating Expenses - 102,879 41,148 AG,879
Operating income {Loss) 1,145 {6,322) (11,338)
Nonoperating Revenues {Expensas):
‘Operating Granis . - : - 78,002 -
‘nvesiment and Interest income - : : - 25,334 : 2,803
Gain: {Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets [E5) 1 -
Interest Expense - - -
Gifts and Donations - - -
Othar Revenues 197 - -
Other Expenses:
Property Tax Credits - - -
Geants Disbursed - {1,425} (434)
Gthet - - -
‘Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses} 183 101,910 2,089
income {L.oss) Before Contributions and
Transfers 1,337 95,589 (8.26%)
Capitat Contributions - v -
Additions to Endowmsants - - -
Transfers In - 32,800 -
Transfers Out (9} {6,068} (286)
Ket Change in Fund Equity 1,328 122,320 {9,555}
Fotal Fund Eguity-Beginning of Year 6,604 861,732 76,551
Totat Fund Equity-End of Year 3 7832 § 984 052 § 66,996

The notes 1o the financial sistements are an inlegral part of this statement.
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Governmental

43

Buéiﬂess‘-!ype Actlvities
P T R ' i Activities -
- University of Unemployment Internal
- Wisconsin insurance Nonmajor Service
. Bystem Reserve Enterprise Totals Funds
- % R 809,387 § 638,907 249330
e 484,503 816,527 1,301,030 .
77442 - - BTT442 -
626,844 - . 625,844 .
08,899 . . 105,899 -
195,845 . . 195,845 -
232,437 - . 232,437 .
32,201 - . 32,201 -
- 75,989 33,845 254,863 1
. 202466 ; 202,486 .
- 49,294 - TAgbos R
470,733 ‘5,146 - 123 176,037 L1103
1,940,491 817,388 1,550,882 4582155 2500434
2,150,948 - 231,800 2,351,579 46,485
724051 - 140,512 867857 140,730
- - 248,520 248,530 o
62,180 - - 62,180 R
120,122 - 10,661 130,831 ..23437
s 1,186,584 916,403 2,204,924 30,527
- - 618 74,548 -
4901 - 7,341 15100 - -
3,662,202 1,186,584 1,555,055 5,995,630 241,178
{1,121,711) {369,186) 103,927 {1,403,484) 9,256
S . sa7 78,309 -
9473 - - 11578 48,887 st
{15,873) - {in (16,989) - 43,213
(15,874 - {1,105) (16:879) {10,091
185:696 . - 185,606 .
T - 1,744 1,840 403
- - (105,767} {105,767} -
. . {6,133} {7,991 .
(749) - (8} {757 12,884}
162,573 . {99,305 167,440 {8,4373
(959,138} (369,186) 4,622 (1,236,044) 181
33,443 - 2,071 35,514 -
2,675 . - 2075 -
1,102,548 - 68,624 1,203,873 10,237
{35,104} - {40,328) (85,808) (28,085)
139,824 {369,186} 34,980 '(80,289) (18,040)
3,366,137 1,586,218 330,986 5228027 13,504
3,505,981 § 1217032 3 365,965 6,147,938 (4,539
i .
. Total Net Change in Fund Equity Reported Above & {80,289}
Consolidation Adjustment of Internal Services Activities Refated to Enterprise Funds 2,528
Change in: Net Agsets of Business-Type Activiies  § (77,781}



State of Wisconsin
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

{In Thousands)

Business-type Activities .
- AMeterans
: SR ~Mortgage
Patients * Environmental <V Loan
- LCompensation - {mprovement - 'Repayment

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
. Cash Receipts from Cusiomers .. A 3 32519 % - 8 -
_'Cash Payments io Suppliers far Goads and Services o {461) (1,201} {935}
Cash Payments o Employeas for Sewlces {462) (5,435} {3,793}
Tuition ang Fees - “ - .
Granis ang Contracls : . - - -
‘Cash Payments for Lottery Przze= ST - .
Cash Payments for Loans Originated - - (61,148}
Coltection of Loans - . - . 293,296
Interest Income . o . - - 37,380
Cash Payments for Benefits o {27.685) - -
‘Sales and Servicas of Educational Activities - . -
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Efzterprfses : . - .
Sales and Services of Hospitals . . . .
- Seholarships and Fellowships. . . . Sl . - B -
- Other Operating Revenues . : . . 34 -
" Other Operating Expenses i S ‘ : - . (2.822)
Other Sources of Cash - . 176 - -
Cther UsesofCash: - -~ . - - -

. Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operatmg Activities 4,177 {6.602) 251,880

Cash Flows from Noncapitai Financing Activities: ’
(iperating Grants Receipts : . 77.644 .
 Grardts for Loans fo Governmersts - . -
Grants Disbursed ' - (1,425) (844)
Proceeds from lssuance of L{mg‘term Dabt - 92,266 26,288
_Retazemem of Longwtem ert B o S - (36,405) (347.272)
Escrow Deposit & " P _ . {92.044) B
Interest F’ayments e = - : : : - {34,443) . {40,218)
- Property Tax Credits o . . _ - - -
Noncapital Gifts and Grants ) - - : .
- Anterfund Loans Received . - . ) - - -
interfund Loans Repaid~ - .7 . : _ . - : .
“ inferfind Borrowings to Other ?uﬂds P T S - - : -
“Repayment of interfund Borrowings - - . .
inferfund Advances Coliecled - v - .
Transfers In ' - 32,800 -
Transfers Out ) (6,068) (286}
Student Direct Lending Recelpts - - .
Student Direct Lending Disbursements - . -
©ther Cash Inflows from Noncapital Financing Activities - “ -
Other Gash Outflows from Noncapital Financing Activities - - -

Net Cagia Prowc%ad {(tised) by Noncapital Financing Activities {9) 32,324 (158,432)

Cash Flows from Cap;tal ant Related i-‘mancmg Activities:

Proceeds from lasuance of Long-farm Debt - - -
Capitat Contributions - - -
Repayment of Long-term Debt - - -
Repayment of Short-lerm Notes. - - -
interest Payments ) - - -
Capital Lease Obligations . - B -
Proceeds from Sale of Capiial Assels B - B

Payments for Purchase of Capital Assets - - {443
Other Cash infiows from Capital Financing Activities - - B
Other Cash Quiflows from Capital Financing Activities - - -
"Nst Cash Provided {Used) by Cap;tal and Related Firancing Activities - w (A}
cssh Flows from investing Activities: AT R ’ .
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of investment Securmes 177,348 54,422 -
Purchase of Investment Securities o ] {223,820} {68,775) -
Cash Payments for Loans Orggmaled - {185,553) -
Gollection of Loans - 72,367 -
investment and Interest Receipts o 31,230 50,191 2,503
Net Cash Provided (Used) by investing Activities {15,242) (87,348} 2.503
Met Increass {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (11,075} (41,625} 105,917
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 17,168 303,602 146,088 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 50084 % 261,968 3 252,008

44




IR Basinesé»type Activities

Governmental

45

S L Activities » .
cUniversity of Unemployment : Internal
Wisconsin Insurance - Nonmajor Service
System O ‘Reserve Enterprise Totals Funds
-5 475,66 $ 1614647 % -2,122.926 3 260,587
{781,541} 2 {135,322) {919,460} {149.;676}
{2,136,056) - {236,812} {2,382,558) © (48,173}
557,415 - S 557,915 LT
771,503 - - CFE03 -
e - (263,785} < {263,785) .
{39.055) - {19,372} (119.572) -
37801 . 21,374 352,472 -
- - 4,440 41,830 S
- (1,1B2,672) (908,992) (2,117,358) {24,084
196,383 D - 186,383~ - S e
238,936 - D 230836 -
31,602 - C- LU3Ee02 -
{62,180} - e 162,180) .
163,081 251,767 1,786 - MEE78 3,325
- {B58) {32,004) {35484) i
e S 6882 17,088 ag7
- - {43} R )] - {2.978)
(1,020,800} {455 803} 54,799 (1,162,139} 41,309
- - 344 77,988 -
- - 3¢ Py 11 I -
- - (6,393) - {B,362) - -
- - - 122,155 -
- - - - {183877) -
- - o {82,044) ~
- - B18; {75,280} -
- . {108,042) . {108,042} -
188,591 - - 188591 -
- - 2,587 RGBT R
- - - {433). LLA33) {7,559)
- " 20,474 C20474 Sl
- - - - 24
1,063,805 - 688,825 1,165,430 - 9,414
- . (35,768) {42,130) (28,005)
118,588 - - 119508 - IR
{119,533} - - {118,533) -
- - 130 430 -
{2,755) . {7} {2,763} -
1,248,705 {51,075} 1,072,513 " {26,216)
137,502 - 22,688 160,170 15,978
29,085 . 2,07t 31,156 AR
(78,525) - (1,031 (77,558) {7.810)
- - - - {21,893)
{53,848) - {1.129) (55,074) {10,501}
B - (389} {384} {3,560}
- - 14 14 12,145
{208,265) {32,852} (241,161} (18,0128)
- . 14 4 -
- - {803) (503} -
TT72728] : TT123%) TTE3430) 1328677
536,97C - 35,884 804,823 -
(549,085) - (18,651} (850,331} .
. - (208} {185,759} -
- . 280 72,857 -
9,512 75,989 28,107 198,531 21
(2.603) 75,989 465423 38,721 2%
54,354 (373,814} 38,908 (233,335} (17.463)
504,991 1,463,986 553, 680 2,880,505 52,606
553,344 § 1,084,171 § 502,589 § 2,756,170 § 35,142
TS U TU U st s AU ol Al
{Continued)



Stute 0f Wzscansm
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Far the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

{Continued)

Bus ness»type Activities
“Veterans
Coenan --Mortgage
Patients Envimnmﬁntai Jorhoan

- Compensation

improvement

‘Repayment

‘Reconciliation of Operéimg income {Loss) to
Net Cash Provided {used) by Operatlons

Operatmg ncome (Lcss)

Adjusémsm to Reconcie Qperaimg mcome (Loss) to
Net Cash-Provided (Used} by Gperatmg Activities:

Deprematlan R
Amorlization
Provision for Uncullecﬂhle Amaunts
Operating income {Investment Income) -
 Classified as Investing Agtivity
Qperating Expense (Interest: Expense)

Clagsified.as Nonsapital Financing Act;v;ty
Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Changes i Assets and Liabilities: -

Decreage (Increase) in Recezvables
- Decraase {Increase) in Due from Other Fuads

Detrease (increase) in Doe from Compofzer;t Linits

| 'Decrease {Increase) in Due'from Othiar Gavernments

Decrease{increass})in tnventories |

Decrease {increase} in Prepaid flems

Decrease (Increase) in Other Assets

Decrease {increase} in Defefred Charges

increase {Decreasel in Accounts Paya?)le

-and Other Accrued Liabilities )

Increase {Decrease) in Compensated Absences

Increase (Decrease) in Diueto'Dther Funds

Increase (Decrease) in Due to ‘Component Lnits

increase (Decrease) in Due 16 Other Governments

‘Increase (Decrease) in Tax and Other Deposits
. Increase {Decrease) in Defarred Revenue
Cincrease {Decrease) in interest Payable

“increase: {Decrease) in P‘uture Benef ts and Loss Lrabihtnes

Tatal Adjustments
Net Cash Provided {(Used) by Operaling Activities

Noncash investing, Capital and a’-':nancmg
Activities: )

Capltai { eases (Initial Year)
Fair Market Value
Current Year Cash Receipts {Payments)
Cortitributions/Transfer In [Out) of Noncash Assets
and Liabiities fromfto other Funds
Net change in unrealized gains and losses
Other

The notes o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

1,145 $

(6322Y'%

{11,338}

&

(76,639)

197
2,162

14
o

1188

78475

580

{34.784)

34,300

f51-}

(128)
)
™

44

(23;)

43

{5-‘;)

39,283

240,554
(24)

(21’ )
278

(6.623)
32

(102}

(?2&)

3.032

(280)

273,228

4177 &

48

(6,802) §

261,890



